

City of Pompano Beach

100 West Atlantic Blvd. Pompano Beach, FL 33060

Detailed Minutes - Final

City Commission

Lamar Fisher, Mayor Charlotte J. Burrie, Vice Mayor Rex Hardin, Commissioner Barry Moss, Commissioner Beverly Perkins, Commissioner Michael Sobel, Commissioner

Gregory P. Harrison, City Manager Mark Berman, City Attorney Asceleta Hammond, City Clerk

Tuesday, May 8, 2018 Commission Chamber

City Commission Meeting

CALL TO ORDER

The Honorable Lamar Fisher called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m.

ROLL CALL

Present: Commissioner Rex Hardin

Commissioner Barry Moss

Commissioner Beverly Perkins Commissioner Michael Sobel Vice Mayor Charlotte Burrie

Mayor Lamar Fisher

INVOCATION

Elder Harold Westley of the Newborn Holiness Church offered the invocation.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Led by Asceleta Hammond, City Clerk.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

18-364 Regular City Commission Meeting Minutes of April 24, 2018

A motion was made by Commissioner Hardin, seconded by Vice Mayor Burrie, that the Minutes be APPROVED. The motion carried by a unanimous voice vote.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

A motion was made by Commissioner Hardin, seconded by Vice Mayor Burrie, to APPROVE the Agenda as submitted. The motion carried unanimously.

CONSENT AGENDA DISCUSSION

The Commission may pull items from the Consent Agenda. During Audience to be Heard, a person may speak on any item on the Consent Agenda, which has not been pulled.

Mayor Fisher announced that items 4, 5, and 6 would be pulled from the Consent Agenda for City Commission discussion.

SPECIAL RECOGNITION

Mayor Fisher acknowledged and congratulated Linda Houston Jones, President of Ashanti Cultural Arts, who was inducted into the Dr. Nan S. Hutchison Broward Senior Hall of Fame on May 4, 2018.

A. SPECIAL PRESENTATION

18-354 Legislative Update

The following legislators and lobbyist provided the Commission and residents with an update of information at the State and local level.

State Senator Perry Thurston, Jr.

State Representative Patricia Williams - District 92 - (Please see Exhibit I attached)

Yolanda Jackson, Esq. of Becker & Poliakoff - (Please see Exhibit II attached)

The Special Presentation was READ AND PRESENTED INTO THE RECORD.

18-361 Community Garden Interns

David Miller, Apprentice for the City's Community Garden introduced Trenton Brooks and Howard Castin, Blanche Ely High School Engineering Program students who spoke about their experience as interns at the Community Garden.

Chris Reeser, Site Manager for the Patricia Davis Community Garden, stated that David Miller has partnered with him and has been working in the garden. Trenton Brooks and Howard Castin has been participating in a program in Grow City Youth, which has been successful in the North Pompano area. The kids learn public speaking, financial literacy, and farm to table preparation of the food grown. A care package was distributed to the Mayor and City Commission of a small sample of what they have grown since the grand opening in January.

Trenton Brooks spoke about the importance of Community Gardens in the community and how it impacts his personal life. He urged the City Commission to provide more of these type of programs which will enhance young people's public speaking skills and invited everybody to come out and experience the fun they are enjoying.

David Miller stated that they are opened Saturday, from 9:00 a.m to 12:00 p.m. and urged people to come out and speak to them to become aware of the program and activities.

The Special Presentation was READ AND PRESENTED INTO THE RECORD.

B. PROCLAMATIONS

18-355 Water Reuse Week

Mayor Lamar Fisher proclaimed May13 through May 19, 2018 as Water Reuse Week in the City of Pompano Beach and presented a proclamation to City of Pompano Beach Utilities Director A. Randolph Brown.

The Proclamation was READ AND PRESENTED INTO THE RECORD.

18-357 National Safe Boating Week

Mayor Lamar Fisher proclaimed May 19 through May 25, 2018 as National Safe Boating Week in the City of Pompano Beach.

Accepting the proclamation were Richard Leys, representative from the U.S. Coast Guard Pompano Beach Flotilla 34 and CDR Stephen Izzi from the Pompano Beach/Lighthouse Point U.S. Power Squadron.

The Proclamation was READ AND PRESENTED INTO THE RECORD.

City of Pompano Beach

C. AUDIENCE TO BE HEARD

Mayor Fisher announced that it was time for "Audience To Be Heard" and offered the following guidelines: Once your name is called, please come forward to the podium in front of the commission, state your name and address for the record. Speakers will be limited to three minutes to speak on any item of concern or interest, including those items pulled from the Consent Agenda. In addition, he asked speakers not to speak on any items on tonight's agenda, as they will have that opportunity to do so when that item comes forward. Lastly, he requested that speakers refrain from any emotional outbursts in either support or non-support of the speaker's comments.

Pursuant to Section 30.07(C)(2)(c) of the City's Code of Ordinances, "Thirty minutes or such time needed to permit ten members of the public to speak, whichever is longer, shall be set aside at the beginning of each City Commission meeting for the "audience to be heard" session. The "audience to be heard" session shall be continued at the end of the Commission meeting in the event that individuals wishing to speak are not reached during the first session". (Effective November 27, 2007)

The following persons were called to speak:

Bike Lanes - Thomas Drum, 2700 NE 8th Street, Pompano Beach, FL, stated he read an article in the Pelican newspaper about changing the configuration of Atlantic Boulevard and Dixie Highway with the addition of bike lanes. Mr. Drum invited members of the dais to go bike riding with him and promised to supply the bikes and helmets. This would take place on Friday, May 18, 2018 at 5:30 p.m., or another convenient day. He mapped out the route they would travel which would commence at 26th Street Brewery east on Atlantic Boulevard over the bridge, over the bike lane on A1A, north to 14th Street, west to Federal Highway, cross the street and head south on Federal Highway to Atlantic Boulevard, cross and head back to 26th Street. Specifically, he asked City Manager Harrison, who said he would ride, Comr. Sobel said yes, Vice Mayor Burrie said if her injured foot will allow her, Mayor Fisher indicated he could not make it due to a scheduling conflict, Comr. Hardin said he would check his schedule and would join in, but will carry his own bike, Comr. Moss said he would not because he is not a rider, Comr. Perkins said she will walk not ride and City Attorney said he will drive by.

Expressions of Appreciation - Linda Houston-Jones, Pompano, FL, thanked the City Commission for what they have done for the children, the citizens and the community of Pompano Beach. In addition, she said so many times the great things being done are overlooked, as well as the services given. She said the theme for the Mayor's Prayer Breakfast was unity, which had a great impact on her. She reiterated her thanks for all that the City has done for the Ashanti Cultural Arts, and for attending their events, as well as inviting them to be part of the program. Ms. Houston-Jones looks forward to working with the City in the upcoming year as well as solicit their continued support.

Expressions of Appreciation - George Dillard, Pompano Beach, FL, expressed special thanks to the City Commission and Mayor Fisher, because he sees somethings changing in his neighborhood. He encouraged them to keep up the good work. He expressed special thanks to Comr. Perkins for pushing him to coordinate the cleanup of the neighborhood. Also, he thanked City Manager Greg Harrison for the things he is doing for

Page 4

City of Pompano Beach

the community and for Mario Sotolongo, Code Compliance Manager for the good job he is doing in the community. Additionally, he is pleased to see the Sheriff's department becoming more visible in his neighborhood, so special thanks to them as well.

Request for Unity - Jocelyn Jackson, Pompano Beach, FL, stated she attended the Mayor's Prayer Breakfast earlier in the morning, which was worth her time attending. She said the key to the message at the event was unity which has "touched her." She commented on how she observed the members on the dais operating in disunity. She then provided examples of how she has seen the disunity especially with how the members of the Commission vote in getting things passed for District 4. She said Comr. Sobel does vote for the best interest of the district. She indicated that the people are looking to Mayor Fisher as a leader to uphold respect for each other in a district. She said while they do not have to vote together all the time, they still need to support District 4 on some things. She urged the City Commission to bring the City back to where it used to be, which is to be excited and elated when it is commission time.

<u>Gun Control</u> - Delores Bullard, 212 North Flagler Avenue, Pompano Beach, FL, stated that no one needs a gun other than the police and especially the citizens.

<u>Harassment by Police Officer</u> - Ms. Bullard complained about Officer Rivera who she alleged is harassing her when she calls in to report violations to her property and city property. She explained that she has been trying to maintain the property at 212 North Flagler Avenue; therefore, she watches over things around the area to ensure the property is clean. However, she does have a problem with her neighbor who has vandalized her car. She said she has called the police several times, but has not been responded to for the many times she has called them. She said for the times she has called it appears Officer Rivera responds and wants to chastise her instead of her neighbor who is being a nuisance. Therefore, she urged the Chief of Police to address this situation.

Mayor Fisher noted that the code compliance manager, Mario Sotolongo has heard the complaint made, as well as the Chief of Police and requested that a report be provided to the City Commission and Ms. Bullard. Therefore, if she has reported the incidents as stated, there can be an accurate report on them.

D. CONSENT AGENDA

18-324 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF POMPANO 1. BEACH. FLORIDA, **APPROVING** AND AUTHORIZING THE **PROPER OFFICIALS** TO **EXECUTE** Α 2018 AMENDMENT TO THE **INTERLOCAL** AGREEMENT BETWEEN BROWARD COUNTY AND THE CITY OF POMPANO BEACH PROVIDING FOR DIVISION AND DISTRIBUTION OF THE PROCEEDS FROM THE BROWARD COUNTY ADDITIONAL LOCAL OPTION GAS TAX ON MOTOR FUEL ORDINANCE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

(Fiscal Impact: N/A)

(Staff Contact: Erjeta Diamanti)

A motion was made by Commissioner Hardin, seconded by Vice Mayor Burrie, to APPROVE/ADOPT the item under the Consent Agenda. The motion carried unanimously.

Enactment No: RES. No. 2018-154

18-323 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF POMPANO 2. **APPROVING AUTHORIZING** BEACH. FLORIDA, AND THE **PROPER OFFICIALS** TO **EXECUTE** Α 2018 AMENDMENT TO THE INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN BROWARD COUNTY AND THE CITY OF POMPANO BEACH PROVIDING FOR DIVISION AND DISTRIBUTION OF THE PROCEEDS FROM THE BROWARD COUNTY FIFTH CENT ADDITIONAL LOCAL OPTION GAS TAX ON MOTOR FUEL FOR TRANSIT; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

(Fiscal Impact: N/A)

(Staff Contact: Erjeta Diamanti)

A motion was made by Commissioner Hardin, seconded by Vice Mayor Burrie, to APPROVE/ADOPT the item under the Consent Agenda. The motion carried unanimously.

Enactment No: RES. No. 2018-155

3. <u>18-348</u> A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA, APPROVING AND CONSENTING THE PROPER CITY OFFICIALS TO EXECUTE A TERMINATION OF DECLARATION OF COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS EXECUTED BY SANDRA POOLE FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1642 NE 28TH COURT; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

(Fiscal Impact: \$12,819.00 Program Income)

(**Staff Contact:** Miriam Carrillo)

A motion was made by Commissioner Hardin, seconded by Vice Mayor Burrie, to APPROVE/ADOPT the item under the Consent Agenda. The motion carried unanimously.

Enactment No: RES. No. 2018-156

18-351 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF POMPANO 4. BEACH, FLORIDA, **CLARIFYING** AND RESTATING THE ROADWAY **DIMENSIONS** SURROUNDING **KESTER** PARK. APPROVING **SUCH** CLARIFICATION AND RESTATEMENT OF THE ROADWAYS; PROVIDING FOR RECORDATION OF THE ATTACHED SURVEY AS RIGHT-OF-WAY; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

(Fiscal Impact: N/A)

(Staff Contact: David Recor/Jae Eun Kim)

Comr. Sobel pulled the item for City Commission discussion. Comr. Sobel stated that it was not clear to him why the City had to clarify and restate the roadways around Kester Park.

Paola West, Principal Planner, Development Services Department, responded that the subject property, Kester Park is located on the northwest corner of NE 4th Street and NE 9th Avenue. The park recently obtained site plan approval to provide a new concession building and bathrooms. As a rule, a property that goes through a major site plan approval requires a dedication of right-of-way (ROW). The delineation of the subject property extended out and did not provide the adequate ROW dimensions. Therefore, this is a restatement of the purpose of the land to provide for ROW purposes.

Michael Skversky, 1630 SW 5th Avenue, Pompano Beach, FL, asked how much the concessions stands would cost for the park.

Ms. West responded that it will be \$150,000, which will include the restrooms, the office, the storage and concession stand. However, the dug house is not included in this project. Rather it is part of the G.O. Bond project list.

Horacio Danovich, CIP Manager, in response to Mr. Skversky's question, recalled that the cost of the dug house is approximately \$1,360,000 being budgeted for that particular project. However, when the design is done they will be able to determine a better estimate of the cost.

Mayor Fisher indicated that the job for the concession stand and the bathrooms were bidded out, which Mr. Danovich confirmed that it is correct.

A motion was made by Commissioner Hardin, seconded by Vice Mayor Burrie, that the Resolution be ADOPTED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Yes: Hardin

Moss

Perkins

Sobel

Burrie

Fisher

Enactment No: RES. No. 2018-157

5. 18-352 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA, APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE PROPER CITY OFFICIALS TO EXECUTE A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE LOCALLY FUNDED AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF POMPANO BEACH AND THE STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION RELATED TO THE DESIGN OF CONSTRUCTION PLANS FOR CONSTRUCTION (MILLING AND RESURFACING) OF MARTIN LUTHER KING, JR. BOULEVARD FROM POWERLINE ROAD TO EAST OF SR-9/I-95; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

(Fiscal Impact: N/A)

(Staff Contact: Horacio Danovich)

Mayor Fisher indicated he pulled the item for Ed Phillips. However, he asked Mr. Danovich to provide an explanation on the item.

Horacio Danovich, CIP Manager, indicated that when the city applied for the Tiger grant as a group member with the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) as the umbrella along with five other cities, one of the agreements was to allow the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) and the MPO to run the projects for the cities, which is what they are currently doing. Except from an economy scale standpoint it is better to have one designer and one contractor for all of the projects rather than have six individual ones. Therefore, they are asking the cities to make that modification and accept it, so when they bid out the whole project it is done for one rather than multiple solicitations.

Ed Phillips, 384 NW 19th Street, Pompano Beach, FL, stated he is pleased with the work being done on MLK Boulevard, which he said is a long time coming. Furthermore, he understands this is one component of other components of work to be done, as well as part of the resurfacing will be done from the G.O. Bond funds.

Mr. Danovich stated that this is phase 3 of the education corridor project and provided information on the second and third phases.

Mr. Phillips asked if the MPO is steering the project.

Mr. Danovich responded that they were the lead agency when the City applied for the Tiger grant, so they

continued to be the lead agency because the award was given to the MPO to distribute to the cities. In addition, he said he has been participating in multiple coordination meetings with the FDOT and MPO staff, as well as the design team to ensure the design matches with what the City had already implemented in other areas. He said they are carrying the education corridor theme all the way across, and he has been attending the meetings to ensure this is done as well as verify the plans.

Mr. Phillips indicated that he was concerned that somebody else is "steering the ship" for the City. He asked how does the community benefit program match up with this project. He wants to ensure the residents are participating in working on some of these buildings in the community.

Mr. Danovich stated that the City does not manage the project. He explained that the City must abide by the Federal laws.

Mr. Phillips mentioned he would like to know that the City has some influence over the labor force at some point or other.

Mayor Fisher clarified that Mr. Phillips request is for the job creation when the work of \$3.5 million is being done to have a job opportunity for the local residents to participate.

Mr. Danovich stated for job opportunities he believes it can be done, but they cannot dictate who to select, they will have to follow federal regulation for this.

Vice Mayor Burrie explained that the projects currently being done by the MPO have been projected out ten to twenty years in advance. She also reiterated that MPO receives the federal funds and under the Tiger grant funds are allotted to the various cities.

Mayor Fisher suggested that when Mr. Danovich attends the meetings he conveys the importance of the local people wanting to participate in the project.

Vice Mayor Burrie indicated that she will be attending one of the MPO meetings this Thursday, and will also bring up that matter.

Mr. Danovich indicated that he has inquired about local participation in the project; however, what the MPO and FDOT will do is that once they post the advertisement they will send emails to local companies and invite them to participate. However, they do not control who participate and what are the prices, just as long as they are the lowest responsive bids; therefore, if they happen to be from Pompano Beach they will be awarded.

Comr. Perkins indicated that she had questions earlier but Mr. Danovich cleared them up.

Comr. Sobel indicated that the backup was sparse for items 5 and 6. He asked if the City had paid the \$500,000 within the 30 days of executing the original agreement, which Mr. Danovich replied yes. Comr. Sobel asked why the City Commission is being asked to amend the agreement fourteen months after its commencement.

Mr. Danovich explained the couple phases of the project. He said the first phase was the City's deposit of \$3.5 million matching funds, which is what the first agreement required. The other \$3 million are due in July 2019. Therefore, by that time the City will only have the design done not any construction. So, this item will allow MPO to advertise for the design build company. Currently, the MPO has a company that is doing a design criteria package. Consequently, all the municipalities have been contributing their portion to payout the design criteria package, which must be certified, signed, and sealed by a professional engineer and added to the solicitation.

Comr. Sobel stated that in the Memo provided by Mr. Danovich, it mentions they are amending this agreement by comingling them. However, in the old agreement versus the new agreement they are different in terms of the scope of services.

Mr. Danovich clarified that what is being comingled is the service that the design build company will do. They will put all the projects together to include the other municipalities. So, one city may just get sidewalks, while another, City of Pompano Beach, will get sidewalks, lights, drainage, and road, as well as another city will get landscape. Therefore, whatever the packages are they are comingled as one. All municipalities will have direct benefit from the agreement entered into fourteen months ago.

Mayor Fisher reiterated that to comingle the municipalities will allow the City to get it done cheaper. Consequently, it will allow the City to save more dollars to get more done with the dollars being invested, which Mr. Danovich responded that is correct.

Comr. Perkins asked if the work being done in the City is to resurface a bike path, a sidewalk and to restripe the road.

Mr. Danovich responded that the City is also getting landscape, light fixtures, and new drainage. Hopefully, the city will get the traffic signal at NW 18th Avenue relocated, which he is working on. To date he has requested Broward County to evaluate, design and relocate the signal lighting at the intersection between MLK Boulevard and NW 18th Avenue, prior to the City hiring the design build company to construct the new improvements.

A motion was made by Commissioner Hardin, seconded by Vice Mayor Burrie, that the Resolution be ADOPTED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Yes: Hardin

Moss

Perkins

Sobel

Sobel

Burrie

Fisher

Enactment No: RES. No. 2018-158

18-353 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF **POMPANO** 6. **SUPPORTING** BEACH, FLORIDA, THE **METROPOLITAN PLANNING** ORGANIZATION'S (MPO) **EFFORTS** TO ENHANCE/IMPROVE THE **CYPRESS** CREEK GREENWAY IDENTIFYING ADDITIONAL BY **FEATURES** INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED SIGNAGE, LANDSCAPE, AMENITIES WELL TO INTERSECTION SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS; **PROVIDING** FOR **EFFECTIVE** DATE.

(Fiscal Impact: N/A)

(Staff Contact: Horacio Danovich)

Mayor Fisher pulled the item for Mr. Matthes for City Commission discussion.

Doug Matthes, Pompano Beach, FL, stated that Cypress Creek greenway from the Atlantic Ocean to the Sawgrass Expressway is a proposed pathway up to fourteen feet for pedestrians and bicycles. It runs along Atlantic Boulevard and south of Atlantic Boulevard except for Old Pompano, as indicated in the map provided in the backup.

Mr. Matthes indicated that in Old Pompano the planners/commission already designated 3rd Street from MLK Boulevard to NW 5th Avenue as a primary street. So, currently, the planners are placing the greenway along NE 4th Street, a residential street, along with the green community bus to avoid Atlantic Boulevard traffic gridlock, or perhaps because two of the City's elected officials live south of Atlantic Boulevard and do not want it in their neighborhood. Also, he said there is another major traffic gridlock issue on NE 5th Avenue and NE 4th Avenue truck route. Furthermore, Mr. Matthes stated that years ago they got rid of the buses but now they have returned. In addition, he said he is unaware of any neighborhood planning meetings for input on this particular project. As well as, there is no mention as to how the streets are going to be aligned and how they will get a fourteen feet path on a twenty feet wide street.

Mr. Matthes mentioned that the planners recently stated at a City Commission meeting that all development requires approved traffic plan and asked for the traffic plan for this project. In sum, Mr. Matthes believes the greenway should be routed elsewhere, even if it was approved years ago, and not just "dumped" on NE 4th Street. Moreover, there is a long overdue traffic mitigation implementation citywide. He concluded the traffic in the neighborhood is significantly worse than when he moved to the location years ago.

Mayor Fisher for the records, objected to Mr. Matthes insinuation that he is involved in any way, shape or form, which he said is wrong.

Horacio Danovich, CIP Manager, explained that the subject initiative is something being managed exclusively by the MPO, which has been in the works for several years. Approximately, one year ago the MPO invited a number of representatives from cities to come together to become a team to evaluate complete street initiatives. The idea was to work on something to create a model and this was the perfect project to apply that model. He continued to say what this will do is to allow the MPO to get the process started, because C-14 is committed as the model.

Secondly, it will allow them to evaluate all the elements in complete streets in a place that joins many cities. In sum, it is about a product that intertwines all modes of transportation, including the desires and the benefits of everyone from many municipalities. He added there will be many public hearings as the process continues for all the affected neighborhoods. Moreover, he said it is the statutory requirement of the MPO to send notice to all affected parties.

Comr. Hardin noted that Mr. Matthes commented on traffic in Old Pompano, but said for the records, at the last City Commission meeting during commission reports, he had requested the City Manager to begin the process of looking at the Old Pompano area for a holistic traffic study to figure out what can be done with the traffic situation affecting Old Pompano.

Comr. Moss stated the map indicates that the pathway meanders through Palm Aire and it has been very successful, popular, and many people have been utilizing it, as well as it has been a wonderful bonus to the community. Therefore, he supports this great idea, which is well appreciated by his constituents.

Comr. Sobel asked if this will cost the City anything once it is implemented with regard to long term modification of streetscape.

Mr. Danovich responded to the best of his knowledge this project is fully funded through the MPO.

A motion was made by Commissioner Hardin, seconded by Vice Mayor Burrie, that the Resolution be ADOPTED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ves: Hardin

Moss

Perkins

Sobel

Burrie

Fisher

Enactment No: RES. No. 2018-159

7. 18-360 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, **APPROVING** FLORIDA, AND **AUTHORIZING** THE **PROPER CITY OFFICIALS** TO **EXECUTE** AN UNDERGROUND **EASEMENT** AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF POMPANO BEACH AND FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY (FPL); PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

(Fiscal Impact: N/A)

(Staff Contact: Horacio Danovich)

A motion was made by Commissioner Hardin, seconded by Vice

Mayor Burrie, to APPROVE/ADOPT the item under the Consent Agenda. The motion carried unanimously.

Enactment No: RES. No. 2018-160

E. REGULAR AGENDA

QUASI-JUDICIAL PROCEEDING

Mark E. Berman, City Attorney, advised that item 8 is listed under Quasi-Judicial Proceeding and is quasi-judicial in nature; therefore, anyone who wishes to testify must be sworn in and may be subject to cross-examination by the City Commission or any other interested party. The individuals addressing the City Commission must state his or her name, whether he or she has been sworn, and understands the rules which governs these proceedings. Thereafter, Mr. Berman outlined the order in which they would follow: City staff would make its presentation for each item, followed by the applicant or any other person(s) wishing to speak, closing argument, and then Commission's discussion.

Asceleta Hammond, City Clerk, placed under oath all individuals, including staff, addressing the City Commission in the following matters.

8. 18-350 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA, APPROVING AND CONSENTING TO A TERMINATION/RELEASE OF DECLARATION OF COVENANTS BY AND AMONG TOP SELF STORAGE THREE, LLC, THE GORI FAMILY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP AND THE CITY OF POMPANO BEACH; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (Fiscal Impact: N/A)

(Staff Contact: Maggie Barszewski/David Recor)

Daniel Keester-O'Mills, Principal Planner, Development Services Department, presented the item stating it is a request to release the property owners from a declaration of covenants that was reported in 2007. On February 2007, the Turnpike Distribution Center, LLC, and Gori Family Limited Partnership, LLC volunteered to list certain uses as prohibited on the property, and to provide two dedicated landscape strips. The covenant was submitted concurrently with the three rezoning ordinances, which were included in the backup. In addition, the subject property is located on the north side of Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Boulevard, (MLK, Jr. Blvd.), between Blount Road and NW 27th Avenue. The Turnpike Distribution Center IV, LLC sold the property to the applicant, Top Self Storage III, LLC. A plat was recently approved by the City Commission on January 23, 2018 and subsequently by the County on April 10, 2018, limiting the use of the property to a 225,000 square foot self-storage use.

Continuing, Mr. Keester-O'Mills stated the applicant received site plan approval last year to develop a self-storage facility, a use not listed as prohibited in the declaration, and the project was in compliance with the zoning code without requiring any variances. Since the instrument was recorded in 2007, five years prior to the significant zoning code rewrite adopted in 2012, the Development Service Department has determined that all

the provisions of the covenant are no longer necessary, therefore, staff recommends that it be terminated.

Andrew Shein, Esq., Lockrie, Chakas, 1401 East Broward Boulevard, Suite 303, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301, representing the property owner, indicated that the main provisions were the requirements for a landscape buffer and the limiting of the uses. The approved plat limits the uses and the approved site plan includes landscape buffers. Therefore, the declaration is no longer necessary.

Comr. Perkins stated the project is located in District 4 on MLK, Jr. Blvd. It is a proposed self-storage being located when exiting from the Turnpike and turning left, which is the gateway into the community and she is unsure the residents want to see a self-storage on MLK, Jr. Blvd.

Mr. Shein responded that the self-storage facility was already approved, so the item is to terminate the declaration. However, the project itself includes significant landscape buffers. To the north of the project is 108-foot landscape buffer with a swale area and to the south there is a 25-foot landscape buffer all requested and approved by staff. He said it is a high quality project and throughout the site plan approval process, they made some concessions and satisfied the City's concerns with respect to the neighborhood.

Comr. Perkins expressed concern regarding a plethora of self-storage facilities in Pompano Beach, which is approximately twenty. She said District 4 has a lot of available land and developers are coming in to build what they want and then leaving the district to deal with what has been built.

Mayor Fisher asked if the zoning was properly zoned for self-storage and has it always been that way.

Mr. Shein responded that it was rezoned in 2007 from B-1 and I-1 to B-4, but self-storage was allowed before the rezoning. The previous owner, Turnpike Distribution Center, wanted to go to more heavy business uses, consequently, the declaration was recorded. However, the new owners have now limited it to self-storage in the plat process.

Comr. Moss agreed with Comr. Perkins and he hopes the city administration would stop thinking that warehouses and self-storage facilities are what the city is all about. This is the entrance to the community. Already, a warehouse has been approved for NW 27th and NW 31st Avenue and now there will be a self-storage facility placed on MLK, Jr. Blvd.. Furthermore, Comr. Moss indicated that there is no such thing as a high quality self-storage facility. He urged the City Manager and staff, in moving forward, to stop thinking of District 4 and District 5 as being a good place to put warehouses and other undesirable facilities. He said millions of people are coming to the city through this gateway, which is not pretty and self-storage facilities will not make it any prettier.

A motion was made by Commissioner Hardin, seconded by Vice Mayor Burrie, that the Resolution be ADOPTED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Yes: Hardin

Moss

Burrie

Fisher

No: Perkins

Sobel

Enactment No: RES. No. 2018-161

END OF QUASI-JUDICIAL PROCEEDING

9. 18-220 P.H. 2018-49: (PUBLIC HEARING 1ST READING)

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 100, "STREETS AND SIDEWALKS," OF THE CITY OF POMPANO BEACH CODE OF ORDINANCES BYDELETING **SECTION** 100.46, "COMMUNICATIONS **FACILITIES** IN THE **PUBLIC** RIGHTS-OF-WAY," IN ITS ENTIRETY AND CREATING A NEW SECTION 100.46, **FACILITIES PUBLIC** "COMMUNICATIONS IN THE RIGHTS-OF-WAY," PROVIDING INTENT AND PURPOSE. APPLICABILITY AND AUTHORITY TO IMPLEMENT: PROVIDING DEFINITIONS: PROVIDING FOR REGISTRATION FOR PLACING OR MAINTAINING COMMUNICATIONS FACILITIES IN THE PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY; **PROVIDING** REQUIREMENT OF Α PERMIT; **PROVIDING** APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS AND REVIEW PROCEDURES; PROVIDING FOR A PERFORMANCE BOND: PROVIDING FOR CONSTRUCTION METHODS FOR **PLACING** OR **MAINTAINING FACILITIES** IN **PUBLIC** RIGHTS-OF-WAY; **PROVIDING** DEVELOPMENT AND **OBJECTIVE** DESIGN STANDARDS; PROVIDING FOR FEES AND TAXES; PROVIDING ENFORCEMENT REMEDIES; 100.60, "DEFINITION," DELETING SECTION ΙN PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; **PROVIDING** AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

(Fiscal Impact: N/A)

TABLED FROM MARCH 27, 2018

(Staff Contact: John Sfiropoulos)

Meeting went into Recess

Meeting Reconvened

John Sfiropolous, City Engineer, presented the item stating that the advance wireless infrastructure deployment act became effective in 2017, requiring municipalities to revise their codes to be in compliance. Consequently, the City engaged the services of law firm Gray Robinson. The proposed code amendment will accommodate the growing needs and demand for communication services, while at the same time protecting the public

rights-of-way (ROW). The proposed code amendment has been reviewed by the effected industries and their input has been taken into consideration. Some of their comments the City was able to support while other comments were not supported for various reasons to include conflict with state statutes or not in the City's best interest.

Gary Resnick, Esq., Gray Robinson, serves as the City's outside counsel on communication matters, as well as the Mayor of Wilton Manors, and member of the FCC Advisory Committee. He provided a brief history on the item, which is a result of a state statute that became effective last year regarding small wireless facilities and their access to the public ROW. This is known as the statute that passes the Advance Wireless Infrastructure Deployment Act, which he provided a short presentation summarizing the statute.

Additionally, Mr. Resnick mentioned that currently, the City's code requires \$25,000 either in cash or performance bond. Therefore, if a communications company is coming in to use the ROW for either fiber or an equipment facility, it would have to register and submit a performance bond or a cash bond in the amount of \$25,000. The proposed ordinance continues that, but it requires a "cash bond" not allowing for a performance bond and explained the reasons for the amendment. In addition, he said permit fees cannot be required.

Mayor Fisher noted that there were some industry leaders in the audience. Also, two written objections were received from T Mobile and AT&T stating that the City is violating state and federal statutes. Therefore, he asked if the city is violating any such statutes.

Mr. Resnick responded that with his experience on the matter, he does not believe the city's ordinance is violating the state statute that recently passed or the federal law. He said it is a nineteen-page statute that went through the legislative process, and it was revised numerous times during the legislative process. There are internal inconsistencies in the statute, so there are some problems with respect to interpretation and understanding. Therefore, he clearly stated that the City's ordinance is consistent with the statute, and remain in some instances reasonable, as stated in the statute. For example, they are not allowed to locate a small wireless facility where it would interfere with drainage, or a capital project that the City is undergoing or is planning. It would not interfere with public safety or bike plans or multi-purpose trails or other things that the City has. In sum, the proposed ordinance is consistent with law and would be supportable.

Janna Lhota, Esq., Holland and Knight, 515 Las Olas Boulevard, Fort Lauderdale, FL, represented Verizon Wireless Personal Communications. She stated that she is aware that the City Commission received letters from other members of the working industry group to include T Mobile as well as Crown Castle. Consequently, Verizon Wireless joins in those comments and objections that were raised by the industry. On behalf of the industry she thanked the City and staff in particular, the City Manager, City Attorney, City Engineer and outside counsel, for working with them to get the ordinance to where it is at this point. However, she stated that as indicated by the letters, there are still some open issues that they would appreciate further dialogue prior to the City Commission considering the ordinance at second reading.

Ms. Lhota stated that one of the items brought up by Mr. Resnick was the security fund and the permit fees. She reminded the Commission prior to the adoption of Section 337.401, which allowed communication facility providers access to the ROW, the City had entered into individual license or franchise agreements for providers to access the ROW and they paid a gross receipt tax to the City. Therefore, with the adoption of the

City of Pompano Beach

communications services tax in 2001 it was consolidated into a single tax that has been remitted to the City by the communications services providers since that time. She continued by providing information on the wireless services provided by the communication services providers, and their contribution to the City's residents and businesses. In addition, she noted a few objections they had with the proposed ordinance, and that the objective design standard places limitations on the deployment, which she provided an example. Further, she said the ordinance indirectly violates the statute by virtue of imposing design standards that preclude the providers from being able to deploy the equipment that is being allowed by statute. Ms. Lhota also pointed out another item that indirectly violates the statute, which was the location contexts.

Ms. Lhota concluded that the various objections are detailed in the letters submitted by the industry and she hopes that the City Commission would allow them sufficient time between first and second reading to work through the issues with the City as to what can be done. She said while they may not come to terms with everything, a few more gaps could be bridged to provide the capacity, and the coverage that the citizens, residents, and visitors demand.

Mayor Fisher enquired in the capacity of time, does Mr. Resnick or staff felt that between first and second reading they will be able to get the additional questions answered and to possibly make changes to accommodate the industry.

Mr. Sfiropolous responded yes, and that he will be meeting with City Attorney Berman and Mr. Resnick to review the comments presented to see if they can shrink the gap.

Mark Berman, City Attorney stated that with regard to the comments received, the City tried to work it to a point where it is reasonable. He said rather than extend the moratorium, which the industry may not want, because it has been extended before. However, the City is time limited because the moratorium will expire shortly after second meeting. So, this must be kept on track and hopefully there will be an opportunity to meet with all the counsels sometime prior to second reading to try to limit the matters or reduce some of the angst with some of the issues, and to reach a fair compromise as to as many things as possible. In sum, the City's team is willing to sit down with the industry's counsels to try and resolve whatever differences that can be agreed upon.

Matthew H. Scott, Esq., Dunay Miskel Bachman, 14 SE 4th Street, Suite 36, Boca Raton, FL 33432, spoke on behalf of Crown Castle, who provided a letter to the City echoing the objections for the industry. He said he wanted to note for the record that cities across the state are working through the issues and so there is language that the industry is comfortable with and other cities are comfortable with as well. Therefore, he requested that the City Commission encourage the city attorney and outside counsel to really sit with representatives of the industry and allow them to propose language, which he says there is a middle ground that other cities and the industry have been able to reach throughout the state.

Mayor Fisher encouraged Mr. Scott to bring those items forward as they continue to have dialogue with the City.

Doug Matthes, Pompano Beach, FL, stated that he is not part of the industry and he does not use wireless services. However, he stated that he has some concerns. In sum, he said there is a visual pollution problem in

City of Pompano Beach Page 17

his neighborhood created by the communications industry, which have cables installed that are unattractive. These cables should be removed and placed underground at no cost to the neighborhood, which he suggested should be included as part of the requirement by the City's ordinance. Also, he suggested that the boxes used by the industry should be placed at least 500 feet apart from each other.

Mayor Fisher clarified that as Mr. Resnick mentioned earlier in his presentation, this is not the City of Pompano Beach, but it is a state statute that has taken the home rule away. Therefore, the City is doing its best to provide regulations in an ordinance that would limit some of Mr. Matthes' concerns in the best way possible, yet at the same time comply with the requirements of the state statute, as well as the industry's needs to perform the services.

Mr. Resnick in response to Mr. Matthes' question regarding the cable boxes installed throughout the neighborhood, stated that this is one of the items in the City's ordinance, which is a point of disagreement between the industry and the City's counsel. He said Ms. Lhota indicated that the statute prohibits spacing requirements between the equipment facilities, but the statute expressly allows it. Therefore, the ordinance does contain a 200 foot separation requirement for ground-mounted facilities. Nevertheless, they plan to work with the industry to see if they have other language that might work better. However, he said the intent of the ordinance is not to prohibit the service, rather it is to strike a balance between where these can be located, so that there is no unreasonable interference with the use of the ROW by the public or creating more visual pollution.

Mr. Matthes asked if the City could require that all new facilities use underground cable.

Mayor Fisher indicated that requirement is not feasible.

Corey Thompson, 2160 NW 4th Street, Pompano Beach, FL, asked for an explanation on "enhanced cellular phone service and cable service."

Mr. Resnick responded that there are representatives from the industry present at the meeting who could better answer the question as these are their technologies, but are not operating yet, so, the City does not know what they will do.

In sum, Mr. Resnick indicated that there is a bit of misunderstanding with regard to the financial matters. He said the City is not making any money as a result of allowing the technology in the ROW. The City received, and always has, since 2006 communications services tax, paid by the customers not paid by the companies, so it is a line item on their bills. This eventually goes to the City's general fund. So, no money is being made as a result of the statute allowing the facilities to be located in the ROW.

Vic Bernatti, representative of AT&T, 2856 NE 24th Court, Fort Lauderdale, FL, explained that the amount of voice communication is not increasing in a significant manner. On the other hand, data is. He mentioned more people are working from home, so with this technology it will allow for people to work anywhere at any time. The purpose is to serve people with voice, but more than that, it is to fill the gaps in data. He said that AT&T agrees with the industry and the issues that are still open as per Ms. Lhota's comments made earlier. Finally, Mr. Bernatti stated that having worked with city staff and administration in the past, he felt positive that

between first and second readings they can work out a lot of the issues. Also, he said both the City and the industry have the same goals, which is to do what is best for the people in the City of Pompano Beach.

Edward Phillips, Pompano Beach, FL, suggested that the attorneys be allowed to work out the issues involved with this matter. He said as residents, they do not want to be inundated with facilities within the neighborhoods for all the devices that the industry desires to place in the residential communities. Moreover, he believes the attorneys should find a way to charge the industry for setting up in the communities.

Anne Siren, Pompano Beach, FL, asked about the devices that are installed higher up and wondered if this is to protect human or the device. Also, she enquired if there are any waves that the residents need to be concerned with as there is a large population of people with autism in the neighborhoods.

Mr. Resnick responded that under federal law the city is preempted from regulating the placement of any wireless device based on perceived health effects of radio frequency emissions. He said the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) in Washington has sole authority over that and as long as the company is complying with FCC regulations that is all that can be required. So, the City cannot regulate.

Mr. Berman explained that the location and the height of the devices are determined by the industry, the need for grids for their service, so they are the ones who determine how high and how far apart they go, which per the statute is basically within their bailiwick to make that determination. So, the purpose they are kept is for the effectiveness of the communication system.

Tom Terwilliger, 3160 NW 1st Avenue, Pompano Beach, FL, said he has several patents in television communications and said the height dictates the distance from which the signal can be radiated. Therefore, the higher it goes the better radiation is achieved for the service, so height matters. Additionally, Mr. Terwilliger provided information of his involvement with the communications industry and said he supports the fact that the City should look at a common sense way to enforce all companies to work jointly, so that when they have to destroy the streets with their own fiber optic cables, it is done together so that they only demolish the streets once. In essence, he said they do not want the City streets to be destroyed multiple times.

Mr. Terwilliger suggested forming a plan to be included in the ordinance where all wireless carriers who desire to use the City's streets would have "one bite of the apple" that is it would only take one time to destroy the city streets and put in the pipes for their fiber optic cable and put it back together, rather than several times.

Mr. Resnick stated the ordinance includes a "Dig once policy." In sum, he said to stop the areas from being subject to constant excavation, the ordinance provides that once an area is excavated, another company cannot excavate in the same area for approximately two years.

Molly Moor, stated that as a public health professional, she is concerned about this type of technology and the unknown health risks that it may pose. She indicated that various research studies show that exposure to non-ionizing radio frequency over radiation can severely impact developing cells and she elaborated on how this would happen. Therefore, Ms. Moor stated that she is concerned that the City does not have the long term studies to be able to show the detrimental effects over time. She does not want the City to be put into a position in the future where something could happen by allowing this ordinance to go through to

allow the exposure to the radiation, thus it could open up the possibility of potential financial and health risks for the citizens.

Mayor Fisher reiterated that unfortunately, the FCC states that they have no issues with radio frequency issues, therefore, the City cannot regulate such.

Mr. Resnick responded that is correct. He said if the City does not implement this ordinance, the facilities are free to go anywhere, there are no regulations at all, which will be consistent with the state statute. So, if the City does nothing, then all the companies can put their facilities wherever they want, with no regulations to deny an application. In sum, adopting the ordinance with some regulations, the City is doing what it can to control the physical placement and installation of these facilities.

Barbara Taylor Beggs, 438 NE 2nd Street, Pompano Beach, FL, stated that just this past weekend Comcast was laying fiber optic lines for one specific customer, who is her neighbor east of her. She said she tried to find out why they were doing this one at a time, but no real answer was provided.

Mr. Sfiropolous responded that he will get Ms. Beggs address and follow up on the matter.

Mayor Fisher said the ordinance is about wireless communications going up on poles throughout the city and fiber optics is a different component. Therefore, the city will research to determine why Comcast elected to lay fiber optic lines for one specific customer at a time.

Comr. Sobel stated that there was discussion on a long term land use change, and it seems after listening to both sides it is a replacement of Section 146.46, and it is not clear what the long term benefits are going to be to the residents, or as stated earlier, possibly long term detriment to the residents. Therefore, he would like to know what those are, because the long term land use change is "ripe" for passage. In sum, there are just too many questions being asked. Also, he wanted to know should the ordinance get passed, who in the short and long run will be making money. Would it be the telecommunication companies, the Pompano Beach residents and taxpayers, or the City.

Mr. Berman clarified that first it is not a land use change. Second, it is not about benefits and detriments. He said the legislature has already determined that the benefits to the public are expansions of these communications facilities and additional services are going to be available to all the residents of the City. Therefore, they are allowed to put the facilities in the City's streets and ROW, but the legislature has also allowed the City certain restricted rights to limit uses. For example, if there is underground utilities they cannot go in those areas. Without passing the ordinance, it is going to be a free for all where these companies can go where they want and do what they want without making applications, so that is where the benefits of the ordinance come in. He said the City is trying to do everything it can to protect the residents and the ROW, and yet at the same time not intruding with the rights that the telecommunication companies have been given by the legislature.

Comr. Sobel asked if there were any public participation in the creation of the new rules being promulgating.

Mr. Berman responded that the public participation would have been in front of the state legislature because

they were the ones who created the situation under discussion. He said the residents are not telecommunications experts to be able to decipher what the complexities of a state statute that is not even clear to the industry, and needs to be clarified in certain instances. This is the reason staff, outside counsel, and the city attorney are meeting with the industry attorney to come up with the best situation for the residents, who do not want the clutter in the ROW and less visual pollution, as well as less digging up of the streets.

Mayor Fisher reiterated that this is not a long term land use change at all. However, it is an ordinance to allow for less intrusion for the residents, but at the same time they want maximum service for the data. In sum, at the end of the discussions, hopefully a compromise can be reached to come up with something that is mutually agreeable for the industry and the residents of the City.

Comr. Hardin said he understands that the state passed the statute so the city has to abide by it. However, something must be done or there will be boxes in close proximity to each other citywide. He asked how did the City arrive with what is in place today. In other words, has other communities in the State of Florida flushed it out. Also, he asked, who determines that the City should accept 200 feet separation between boxes instead of 1,000 feet separation.

Mr. Resnick explained that there are a few things involved. There have been other jurisdictions that have adopted ordinances and he has represented some of them. So, he has seen what some other jurisdictions have done and there are a variety. Therefore it is not a "one size fits all" for all the governments in Florida and he provided a few examples. In sum, volume and frequency provided by the industry and required by different cities throughout Florida will vary, as well as residential and commercial restrictions. The models that some cities have adopted are not necessarily appropriate for the City of Pompano Beach. Nevertheless, Mr. Resnick indicated that they tried to look at what other cities have done and come up with reasonable requirements in the ordinance so that the industry can work with the ordinance and locate some facilities, so there is not an overrun of facilities as an intrusion that negatively affects the residents and visitors of the City.

Comr. Hardin opined that less is better for the City of Pompano Beach, however, in the end the residents are the ones who will be impacted by the facilities. Finally, he requested, for second reading, any changes made should be highlighted so the Commission can see them.

Comr. Moss asked Mr. Resnick as Mayor for another city, did they pass a similar ordinance regarding the subject matter.

Mr. Resnick responded no, and provided his reason. He said currently, they have a moratorium and a draft that they are working on. He pointed out that the City of Wilton Manors is not similar to the City of Pompano Beach. In addition, he explained that the signals from the various carriers would not affect services provided by each other to the residents. So, the only thing that can be regulated is the placement and location of the facilities in the ROW, because the cities cannot regulate potential interference between carriers.

Mayor Fisher asked about devices that has the potential to become missiles during the hurricane season.

Mr. Resnick responded that the city's ordinance and the state statute allows them to be subject to the Florida Building Code, as well as the National Electrical Safety Code, the National Electric Code, as well as there is

Page 21

City of Pompano Beach

the Department of Transportation standards that they have to comply with. Moreover, the ordinance require indemnification in the event the devices become airborne missiles in the neighborhood.

A motion was made by Commissioner Hardin, seconded by Vice Mayor Burrie to remove the item from the table. The motion carried unanimously.

Commissioner Hardin. was made by seconded by Vice the Ordinance APPROVED **FIRST** Mayor Burrie. that be **READING.** The motion carried by the following vote:

Yes: Hardin

Moss

Perkins

Burrie

Fisher

No: Sobel

10. 18-349 P.H. 2018-66: (PUBLIC HEARING 1ST READING)

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA, **AMENDING CHAPTER** 91, "BOATS AND WATER **BEACH** RECREATION," OF THE **POMPANO** CODE OF **ORDINANCES** BY AMENDING SECTION 91.10, "DOCKING AND LIVING ABOARD BOATS," TO **DOCKING PROVIDE** REQUIREMENTS **FOR** OF **BOATS ADJACENT** TO MULTI-FAMILY AND COMMERCIAL ZONED LOTS; AND AMENDING CHAPTER "BEACHES AND WATERWAYS," BY **AMENDING SECTION** 151.03. "STRUCTURES IN WATERWAYS," TO MODIFY REQUIREMENTS FOR VARIOUS **STRUCTURES** IN THE WATERWAYS; **PROVIDING FOR** SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

(Fiscal Impact: N/A)

(Staff Contact: John Sfiropoulos)

John Sfiropolous, City Engineer, presented the item stating there are two proposed amendments Chapter 91 "Docking and Living Aboard Boats" and Chapter 151 "Structures and Waterways." He noted that Chapter 91 currently, only includes single-family zoned lots not being permitted to dock a vessel in a navigable channel or within a five-foot sight setback. This proposed amendment will include multi-family and commercial as well.

Additionally, the amendment to Chapter 151 proposes to limit the distance for installation of piles and waterways to make the waterways safer and less obstructive. Finally, he said both amendments have been reviewed by the Marine Advisory Board and approved by engineering.

Comr. Sobel indicated that he did not see any document in the backup from the Marine Advisory Board.

Mr. Sfiropolous responded sometimes they would issue a memo, but in this case there was none. However, in the meetings they had with the Board they assisted staff in revising the code that was forwarded to the City Attorney to amend.

Comr. Sobel indicated that in the ordinance it was unclear to him whether the 40 feet minimum mentioned was for the navigational channel or waterway.

Mr. Sfiropolous explained that the navigable channel is defined by 45% of the width of the canal. He stated that for a 100-foot canal, 45% would be 45 feet navigable channel, which leaves 55 feet, which is 27.50 feet on each side.

Mayor Fisher stated, for the record, the Marine Advisory Board approved the proposed ordinance, which Mr. Sfiropolous responded, "that is correct."

Comr. Hardin stated that the Marine Advisory Board has been working hard on these, which is noted in their minutes, therefore, he appreciates their work.

Comr. Moss indicated that a member from the Marine Advisory Board, Lee Corson, indicated to him that the Board is supportive of the amendments.

by A motion was made Commissioner Hardin, seconded Vice Burrie, that the **Ordinance** be APPROVED **FIRST** Mayor **READING.** The motion carried by the following vote:

Yes: Hardin

Moss

Perkins

Sobel

Burrie

Fisher

11. 18-356 P.H. 2018-65: (PUBLIC HEARING 1ST READING)

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF POMPANO BEACH. FLORIDA. APPROVING AND **AUTHORIZING** THE PROPER OFFICIALS TO EXECUTE A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF POMPANO **BEACH** AND DIMARIA PROPERTIES, INC., FORMERLY KNOWN AS DIMARIA PROPERTIES, LLC, FOR THE OPERATION OF A KIOSK LOCATED AT BEACHFRONT PARK; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

(Fiscal Impact: City will receive an annual rental amount of \$33,000.00)

(Staff Contact: Mark Beaudreau)

Mark Beaudreau, Recreation Programs Administrator, presented the item stating that in 2013 the City issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) 02-13, for the operation of a beach kiosk, which was a Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) development. He said DiMaria Properties was the number one ranked proposer who subsequently entered into a five-year agreement with the City, so, this item is the first amendment to that agreement. He said there were some nominal changes to include time changes.

Michael Skversky, Pompano Beach, FL, asked where is the beach front park.

Mr. Beaudreau responded it is the kiosk just immediately north of Atlantic Boulevard, next to the lifeguard station.

Comr. Sobel asked about the rental history for the last five years, and asked has the 12% ever been applied or reached over the last five years.

Mr. Beaudreau did not have the information in the backup but promised to provide it to the Commission by the next reading.

motion made by Commissioner Hardin. seconded was Vice the **Ordinance** APPROVED **FIRST** Mayor Burrie, that be **READING.** The motion carried by the following vote:

Yes: Hardin

Moss

Perkins

Sobel

Burrie

Fisher

12. 18-347 P.H. 2018-68: (PUBLIC HEARING 1ST READING)

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF POMPANO BEACH. FLORIDA. AMENDING CHAPTER 153, "RENTAL HOUSING CODE," BY "DEFINITIONS," AMENDING SECTION 153.05. TO **MODIFY** DEFINITIONS. RELATED TO VARIOUS COMMUNITY RESIDENCES; AMENDING CHAPTER 155, "ZONING CODE," BY AMENDING SECTION 155.2406, "SPECIAL EXCEPTION," TO PROVIDE SPECIAL EXCEPTION REQUIREMENTS AND REVIEW STANDARDS FOR **COMMUNITY** RESIDENCES AND RECOVERY COMMUNITIES: BY**AMENDING SECTION** 155.2432, "REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION." **MODIFY STANDARDS** AND **PROCEDURES FOR** REASONABLE RESIDENCES ACCOMMODATION AND ESTABLISH SAME FOR COMMUNITY **RECOVERY** COMMUNITIES: **AMENDING** ARTICLE 2. "APPLICATION-SPECIFIC "ADMINISTRATION," **PART** 4. REVIEW PROCEDURES," TO CREATE SECTION 155.2434, "COMMUNITY RESIDENCE

RECOVERY **COMMUNITY** CERTIFICATE," TO **ESTABLISH** AND PURPOSE. APPLICABILITY AND PROCEDURES; BY AMENDING ARTICLE 3, DISTRICTS" OF THE ZONING CODE, TO DESIGNATE SPECIFIC RESIDENTIAL, BUSINESS AND COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS WITHIN THE CITY FOR LOCATION **COMMUNITY** AND **RECOVERY** RESIDENCES COMMUNITIES; AMENDING TABLE 155.3708.H.2 "PRINCIPAL USES REGULATING TABLE," TO MODIFY REFERENCES FOR VARIOUS COMMUNITY RESIDENTIAL USES; AMENDING TABLE 155.3709.E.2, "PRINCIPAL USES REGULATING TABLE," MODIFY REFERENCES FOR VARIOUS COMMUNITY RESIDENTIAL USES; AMENDING ARTICLE 4. "USE STANDARDS" OF THE ZONING CODE DESIGNATE ZONING DISTRICTS, AND MODIFY AND PROVIDE DEFINITION AND STANDARDS FOR RESIDENTIAL HOUSEHOLD LIVING REOUIREMENTS RESIDENCES. **TRANSITIONAL FAMILY COMMUNITY** RESIDENCES, RESIDENTIAL GROUP LIVING USES, RECOVERY COMMUNITIES, **CONTINUING CARE** RETIREMENT COMMUNITIES, **AND ROOMING BOARDING** HOUSES; BY **AMENDING SECTION** 155.5102, "OFF-STREET AND **PARKING** LOADING," TO MODIFY AND **ESTABLISH** THE MINIMUM **NUMBER** OF **OFF-STREET PARKING SPACE** REQUIREMENTS FOR COMMUNITY RESIDENCES AND RECOVERY COMMUNITIES; BY AMENDING SECTION 155.8402, "CIVIL REMEDIES," TO PROVIDE FOR REVOCATION OF **COMMUNITY COMMUNITY** RESIDENCE AND **RECOVERY** CERTIFICATES. INCLUDING PROCEDURES, NOTICE AND APPEAL; BY AMENDING ARTICLE 9, "DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION" OF THE ZONING CODE. TO MODIFY AND **PROVIDE DEFINITIONS RELATING** DISABILITY, TO DWELLINGS, FAMILIES, FAMILY COMMUNITY RESIDENCES, ASSISTED LIVING FACILITIES, **COMMUNITY** RESIDENCES. **RECOVERY** COMMUNITIES. TRANSITIONAL **COMMUNITY RESIDENCES AND SIMILAR** USES; **PROVIDING FOR** SEVERABILITY: PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

(Fiscal Impact: N/A)

(Staff Contact: Jennifer Gomez/David Recor)

Jennifer Gomez, Assistant Director, Development Service Department, presented the item stating that on March 13, 2018, the City Commission approved Resolution 2018-99, the approval of a report, "Pompano Beach, Florida: Principles to Guide Zoning for Community Residences for People with Disabilities." The report laid out the guidelines and implementation path for staff to adopt the proposed text amendments. Ms. Gomez indicated that the report and the text amendments were done with Dan Lauber, Consultant, planning and legal expert in the area of group homes specifically. Mr. Lauber has worked in developing similar ordinances within cities of Arizona, Delray Beach, and he is currently working with the City of Fort Lauderdale. She indicated that Mr. Lauber unfortunately was not able to join the meeting in person, however, he is available by video/phone conference. So he is in the background watching and at the end of her presentation he will be available to answer any questions. For further details, please see the attached presentation made by Ms. Gomez on the proposed zoning ordinance. (Exhibit III).

Tom Terwilliger, 3160 NW 1st Avenue, Pompano Beach, FL, spoke in support of the ordinance. However, he asked the City Commission to issue a proclamation or at the minimum a letter of appreciation to an individual who without his efforts the city would not have this ordinance today. He said the individual is Dave Aronberg, State Attorney, Palm Beach County. He said without his pioneering efforts in bringing this issue before the grand jury, the City would not be at this point of the issue.

Comr. Hardin stated that this is a great step forward and it will do a lot to help those folks who need help and ensure they receive the kind of help they need.

Mayor Fisher thanked Mr. Lauber for all his efforts and expertise. He said this is a long overdue issue and after many years of frustration on both the residents and commission's side to come up with something that is palatable for the courts and also for the residents. So, it is a great accomplishment to bring it to what it is currently. Also, kudos to staff and Mr. Lauber for their efforts.

Comr. Sobel joined in the comments expressed by Comr. Hardin and Mayor Fisher regarding the subject matter. He believes it cannot be overstated of the incredible job City staff did to include City Attorney Berman, Mr. Lauber, Esq., Ms. Gomez and Mr. Wentworth. He said one year and a half ago this issue was compelling, urgent, dangerous, and important to the residents of the City of Pompano Beach. So, this is a result of how government can step up and make tremendous improvements in the quality of the resident's day to day life and property values, to do it fairly, justly, and legally. Comr. Sobel then commended and thanked everybody who worked on the issue.

Mayor Fisher noted that the City Commission has been struggling for more than one and half years as it has been a long road to get to this point.

Vice Mayor Burrie stated that there is a plethora of homes in her District and she has gone to Tallahassee with the help of State Representative Lois Frankel when they did the bill there, but it had to be all voluntary and the City's hands were tied. Vice Mayor Burrie indicated that she appreciates everything that everybody has done but she wanted it known that it was just not one and half year ago, it has been over six years of trying to get this, which is a protection for those who live in these houses too. So she truly appreciates staff, and Mr. Lauber's efforts with this matter. This will help the residents, as well as those recovering.

Mayor Fisher said he tried to find out through the minutes of the Planning and Zoning meeting who was the dissenting vote that voted against the item, but could not determine it, because the minutes just stated 5-1 voted for the item.

Ms. Gomez indicated that she will need to check on the roll call and get back to the Commission on who voted against the item.

Mayor Fisher asked if the item could be declared emergency second reading to get the ordinance into place.

Mr. Berman advised that it should be done in the standard way to avoid any challenge. Also, because it is a zoning ordinance, he would advise against emergency second reading. He thanked Ms. Gomez for her assistance and making his work lighter with all the extensive work she did on the ordinance.

A motion was made by Commissioner Hardin, seconded Vice Mayor Burrie, that the Ordinance be APPROVED FIRST **READING.** The motion carried by the following vote:

Yes: Hardin

Moss

Perkins

Sobel

Burrie

Fisher

13. <u>18-335</u> Approval to award Bid L-09-17 (Step 2) Construction Services for Old Pompano Streetscape Improvements Section 108 Loan Project to the lowest bidder, The Whiting-Turner Contracting Co., at a cost of \$4,781,828.65.

(Fiscal Impact: \$4,781,828.65)

(Staff Contact: Horacio Danovich)

Horacio Danovich, CIP Manager, presented the item stating he has a brief presentation that will make things easier and clearer for everybody. He said work will be done to make some streetscaping improvements in designated roadways in Old Pompano. The project was bid out in 2017, and the source of funding was a Section 108 loan. The intent was to continue the work that was done in Old Pompano through the CRA. The improvement work that will be done is streetscape, landscape, lighting, drainage, water main, reclaimed watermain improvements and sanitary sewer rehabilitation. He said the work being proposed to be done will be east of NE 1st Street. One of the major segment is to tie NE 1st Street into what was done from NE 1st Street between NE 1st Avenue and Flagler Avenue and carryout to the east.

Mr. Danovich concluded that what is being done is to apply complete streets, and those concepts of design to beautify the area as best as possible. So, by upgrading all the utilities this is done for the future for those who want to come in and build there will be new utilities. Therefore, he requested the City Commission's support to award the contract to the lowest most responsive bidder, which is Whiting-Turner Contracting Co., who submitted a bid that is being observed. Whiting-Turner Contracting committed to hold the same price one year later.

Mark Berman, City Attorney read into the record that the correct amount was \$4,781,828.65.

Mike Skversky, Pompano Beach, FL, noted that Whiting-Turner came in at \$5,744,965 and asked why it is stated that the cost to construct proposed improvements of this phase is \$803,251 including \$273,000 for the utility work, drainage, water and sewer.

Mr. Danovich explained that the \$5.744 million was for the entire project. The monies that the city does not have of approximately \$1 million covers the \$800,000 to do NE 3rd Avenue plus \$200,000 in contingency funds that are being set aside for emergency, while the project is being worked on.

Mayor Fisher added that originally those funds were coming from Broward County but they have pulled all those dollars out not only just from the City of Pompano Beach but other cities that had applied.

After some extensive comments from Mr. Skervsky regarding the design of the parking lot on Flagler Street, Mayor Fisher stated that when the City redesigned Old Pompano to include Ms. Bullard's area, this was done approximately five years ago. A parking lot was done west and behind Ms. Bullard's shop to accommodate parking. Also, there was an agreement with First Baptist Church to lease spaces there.

Delores Bullard, 212 North Flagler Avenue, Pompano Beach, stated that she does not have enough parking for her customers and explained how the current parking has been set up. Therefore, she wanted to ensure that when the new construction starts there is adequate parking for everybody.

Additionally, Ms. Bullard indicated that as a result of her numerous complaints as work was going on in her area, she was abused by her neighbors and the police. She said she has been calling those people who are in charge and working those particular days. She has been trying to get more parking spaces, to no avail. Therefore, her customers cannot get parking and consequently her elderly customers have to park over at the church property and walk quite a distance to her place of business for service. Also, she complained that she only has one handicap space for her business, which is not enough.

Mayor Fisher asked if on phase one will they be creating more on street parking.

Mr. Danovich replied they are and explained that whenever the opportunity came up and they were able to do it through the cross section, they are adding on street parking.

Barbara Taylor Beggs, 438 NE 2nd Street, Pompano Beach, FL, asked that special consideration be given to allowing additional handicap parking and make it a little closer to the buildings, to include city buildings, and doctor's offices.

In response to Comr. Hardin's question regarding the time the project got started, Mr. Danovich said it was since 2014 and explained how the process started and progressed.

Comr. Hardin mentioned that earlier Mr. Danovich stated that NE 3rd Avenue is being cut out because the City did not receive the grant. However, he said it is not really "cut out" but rather it has been delayed because it is still part of the project, and hopefully funding will be realized from some other source.

Mr. Danovich confirmed that it is part of the project.

Comr. Sobel stated that he is in favor of the streetscape proposal, but prior to coming to the meeting he had no idea from any of the material in the backup other than a brief description of the streets, exactly what the commission is being asked to spend \$5 million on. Therefore, he had to go back to the minutes from years ago, where it mentioned the commission approving the \$5 million contingent upon the \$1 million coming from Broward County. He said currently, the County has pulled back their funding and the City is still moving forward with this project. However, there was no description for the residents to see what the proposed

streetscape improvements were. There were no drawings, and no specs. Notwithstanding, just today a pamphlet from Chen Moore & Associates, was distributed to the City Commission, with no date on it. It is clear that there was a long term strategy and plan, which he thinks these types of materials should be part of the backup at least one week in advance.

Additionally, Comr. Sobel stated that the area being referred to as Old Pompano area, is actually what has been said continuously to be the Innovation District, which appears to be the entire northwest CRA within the proposal.

Mr. Danovich responded that this is outside the CRA and not in the Innovation District. He said the District starts on Dixie Highway and goes west to I-95 from Atlantic Boulevard to MLK Boulevard. He said the subject matter is located in the heart of Old Pompano, but the area the CRA did was referred to Old Town, which is just to the east of Old Town. He said this had to be done in order to qualify for the Section 108 loan.

Comr. Sobel understands that Whiting-Turner is the lowest bidder by approximately \$40,000. He said contrary to his initial perception of their abilities, they have done a very good job on the pier and what the city hired them to do. However, one of the things he has been looking at in that contract, now that there is a history, is the target for hiring local Pompano Beach residents, minorities, women, and small businesses, which he sees this in the current contract. However, he has never seen any measurables, or any document that states they did or did not reach their target. So, prior to the City Commission approving the \$5 million current agreement with Whiting-Turner, he asked how many local Pompano Beach employees do they have full time working on the \$12 million pier project? Also, how many minorities, how many African-Americans, how many Brazilians or Hispanics, how many small business people from Pompano Beach are working at the pier and will be working on the proposed project.

Mr. Danovich explained that this is the same team that built the MLK Boulevard between Dixie Highway and Northwest 6th Avenue. The same team was asked to meet 5% local participation, so their sub is a local firm and by being onboard they have met 44.5% participation. He said there is not a single project that is not done by somebody as a local firm who has the type of sub participation he mentioned earlier. In fact, the company is anticipating to increase the participation to 53%. Notwithstanding, he said he does not have all the demographics on how many employees, to include Brazilians, Haitians, or African-Americans and so forth. Nevertheless, he will try to ask them to provide this information, if possible.

Comr. Sobel asked if Mr. Danovich can get Whiting-Turner to provide the Commission with how many local residents they have hired full time to work on the pier job and asked for some accountability on this new project moving forward.

Mr. Danovich indicated that he will ask for the information and provide it to the City Commission.

Mayor Fisher pointed out that earlier it was stated that Whiting-Turner has never done a project like the pier, but they have actually built the Lake Worth pier and have built other pier structures as well.

Comr. Perkins requested, for the future, can the percentage of local people being hired be included along with each bid contract.

Page 29

City of Pompano Beach

Mr. Berman replied that he will look into the legality of doing this.

A motion was made by Commissioner Hardin, seconded Vice Mayor Burrie, that the Approval Request APPROVED. The be motion carried by the following vote:

Yes: Hardin

Moss

Sobel

Burrie

Fisher

No: Perkins

14. <u>18-362</u> A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA, APPOINTING <u>JAMES R. BUNN</u> TO THE GOLF ADVISORY BOARD OF THE CITY OF POMPANO BEACH FOR A TERM OF THREE (3) YEARS; SAID TERM TO EXPIRE ON MAY 12, 2021; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

(Fiscal Impact: N/A)

Applicants:

James R. Bunn, Incumbent, District 3

(Staff Contact: Asceleta Hammond)

A motion was made by Commissioner Hardin, seconded by Vice Mayor Burrie to insert the name JAMES R. BUNN and that the Resolution be ADOPTED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Yes: Hardin

Moss

Perkins

Sobel

Burrie

Fisher

Enactment No: RES. No. 2018-162

F. REPORTS

<u>Gregory Harrison, City Manager - Opportunity Zones</u> - Mr. Harrison indicated that lobbyist Yolanda Cash Jackson had mentioned earlier that there are two opportunity zones approved by the governor of Florida, which one is in Collier City, District 5 and the other is the Innovation District in District 4. He said a report will be provided as to the meaning of what this means for the future at the CRA Board meeting. It is an exciting

program that Dave Henshauer worked on to get approved for the City of Pompano Beach.

<u>Grant Awards</u> - Mr. Harrison announced that he received a letter from Senator Bill Nelson announcing a grant award to the City of Pompano Beach for \$1,038,308 for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) for the next fiscal year and \$453,745 for the Home Investment Partnerships Home Grant award. He will provide the City Clerk with a copy of the letter for the record.

<u>Cultural Affairs Assistant City Manager Announcement</u> - Mr. Harrison announced that there is a strong leadership plan for the cultural affairs division for the City of Pompano Beach. He said that starting June 4, 2018, the City will welcome the current director of the Broward County cultural division, Earl Bosworth, who will become the Assistant City Manager responsible for all cultural affairs in the City. He brings with him an extensive senior management experience in cultural arts. In addition, Phyllis Korab who has successfully held the position of Cultural Affairs director for the last year will continue in that capacity under Mr. Bosworth's leadership. There will be an official press release announcing Mr. Bosworth appointment. Mr. Harrison said this is a huge hurdle the City has overcome over the last few weeks.

Finally, Mr. Harrison thanked Ms. Korab for her diligence and hard work not only on cultural affairs, as she will continue to do, but she has led the City with her government relations work and has been the primary liaison with Becker & Poliakoff, the City's lobbyist.

Mark Berman, City Attorney - JCon Construction versus City of Pompano Beach - Mr. Berman reported that he spent most of the prior week in trial at the Broward County Courthouse with trial counsel in the JCon Construction versus City of Pompano Beach in the Fire Station 11 case. The case has progressed and is down to one more witness to testify. The judge has continued the trial, however, a date has not been announced regarding when he will be able to continue the trial. Results is not available at this time but the City Commission will be kept informed as the case continues.

Asceleta Hammond, City Clerk - No Report.

<u>Commissioner Rex Hardin - Major Developer Commendation</u> - Comr. Hardin offered kudos to Greg Harrison, City Manager. He noted that he had the opportunity to speak with a major developer in the area who made comments that the Development Services Department had an astounding turn around. Therefore, he wanted to pass this around and to say Mr. Harrison's efforts are showing. He noted this was one of the top priority in the City Commission strategic planning and goal setting session last year, so the efforts are paying off.

Mr. Harrison acknowledged the recognition and indicated that Brian Donovan, Assistant City Manager, David Recor, Development Services Director, and Miguel Nunez, Building Official are part of the success team.

<u>Underground Utility Plans by FP&L</u> - Comr. Hardin indicated that he read in the newspaper about FP&L and all the activities they did during the hurricane and the results of it. It was interesting that a representative of FP&L stated that they realize that underground in utilities made a huge difference in the reliability factor of the utilities during and after the storm. Therefore, they are going to vigorously pursue undergrounding, so they will

be approaching communities to ask to be allowed to underground their lines. He said the City needs to "raise our hands, shout, scream and jump up and down" to let FP&L know that our community is very interested in their offer to underground utilities.

<u>Mayor's Prayer Breakfast</u> - Comr. Hardin stated that the Mayor's Prayer Breakfast held earlier today was a great event. The speakers were outstanding and he offered kudos to Mayor Fisher for making it happen.

Commissioner Barry Moss - Cordish Companies Expansion Plans - Comr. Moss reported that the Cordish companies have announced that they will partner with the Isle of Capri Casino in the development of the 223 acres site. He said this is an accomplished company and encouraged the City to goggle the Cordish group. Their plans will include office park, residential facilities, shopping center, hotel and perhaps a small conference center. However, the details have not yet been announced. He said this will be enormous for District 5 and for the City at large. This will bring approximately two million people into the City per year. Consequently, the City will have to consider how to get the people in and out of the area, enhancements to the streets and particularly to the way they look. People will come from either the Florida Turnpike down NW 31st Avenue, which is not a lovely street, or from the I-95 and west on Atlantic Boulevard, which is also not lovely, or from Powerline Road, which is not a lovely street as well. He encouraged the City and the Commission that as the process starts a significant investment must be made in the way the city looks to people coming from outside the city into our city. Furthermore, in the city's strategic plan session the Commission gave high priority to improve the look of the City as people come into it. This proposed project will be big and will generate a lot of income for the City and put the name of the city on the map, as well as bring a lot of people to the city.

<u>Farmers Market in Palm Aire</u> - Comr. Moss congratulated the Parks and Recreation department for the success of the first day of the farmer's market in his district. He said there were about twelve vendors selling food, fresh produce, homemade jellies and soaps. It was a success as a lot of people attended the market. He thanked Mark Beaudreau for his idea to hold this event at the Herb Skolnick Center.

<u>Commissioner Beverly Perkins - Demise of Idella Grisset</u> - Comr. Perkins announced the passing of Idella Grisset and offered sincere condolences to the Grisset and Holloway family and mentioned they are in our prayers and thoughts. She said Ms. Grisset was a promising leader in the community and will be sorely missed.

<u>Demise of Rossevelt Jackson</u> - Comr. Perkins stated that the oldest negro league baseball player, passed away, at age 102. She then requested permission to have Travis Jackson to provide more information about this player.

Travis Jackson, Pompano Beach, FL, stated that the Boys and Girls Club park was named after his uncle Roosevelt Jackson. He said for the last four years his uncle has been all over the world to include the White House, and received numerous accolades for being the first and last oldest black negro baseball player manager in the world. He passed away over the weekend and he stated that his uncle loved Pompano Beach with all his heart and will be missed. In addition, he said Mr. Jackson retired from the City of Pompano Beach

City of Pompano Beach

over thirty years ago.

Mayor Fisher asked Mr. Jackson to provide more information on the battle of the bands that for several years he has been working with bringing children together to compete and to instill values and morals in them.

Mr. Jackson informed that he started the Battle of the Bands three years ago and thanked Mayor Fisher and Comr. Perkins for the support given over the years. He said while he has never played in a band, but knowing that music is the way to the heart and soul, he came up with a dream to start a battle of the bands, to bring people together and bridge the gap. He said the first year they had an attendance of over 3,000 people and the sole purpose was to get seven bands from the tri-county area to do a high school battle of the bands. At the same time, each school that participates would receive a scholarship so whether they win or not they would receive a scholarship. He said last year he included a few elementary schools and this year he plans to bring in a few middle schools, as well as a few parents that lost children at Marjory Stoneman Douglas High School to participate in the event, which will be held on May 20, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. at the Blanche Ely High School. He thanked the City of Pompano Beach for allowing him to bring this event to the city.

<u>Birthday Celebration of a Centenarian</u> - Comr. Perkins stated that Ms. Maechelle Fulton will turn 100 years of age on Saturday, May 12, 2018, and will celebrate her birthday at 11:00 a.m. at the Hopewell Missionary Baptist Church where she is a member.

<u>Commissioner Michael Sobel - Eligible Voters Participation</u> - Comr. Sobel stated that he is excited about the prospect of the city becoming the first city in America of this size where 100 percent of the eligible voters could vote. He encouraged everybody to join him in this initiative, and explained the reasons why it is important to vote. He provided the number to the Supervisor of Elections Office (954) 357-7050 extension 3, and urged those who needed to vote by mail to do so because it is very convenient and has been made more secure.

<u>Vice Mayor Charlotte Burrie - Mayor's Prayer Breakfast</u> - Vice Mayor Burrie stated that the Mayor's Prayer Breakfast was terrific and she expressed thanks to Mayor Fisher for having this event.

Mayor Lamar Fisher - Appreciation Supporting Mayor's Prayer Breakfast - Mayor Fisher thanked Vice Mayor Burrie, Comr. Perkins and Comr. Hardin for attending today to celebrate the Mayor's Prayer Breakfast and what it is all about - unity. He said there were some great speakers, and the Committee who worked so hard for the entire year it was important to recognize them. He thanked Dr. Karlton Johnson, Principal of Blanche Ely High School for bringing in some incredible speakers, such as Alonzo Mourning, former Miami Heat basketball player and Anthony Massarotti. He said the message was about unity and the speakers spoke about their lives and how they were influenced by someone else. He hopes this will continue next year. He thanked the community for their support, as well as the sponsorships.

G. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 10:05 p.m.	
	-
	Lamar Fisher, Mayor
A 1 (II) 1 (C) (
Asceleta Hammond, City C	lerk